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You can still find most things that were being 
sold in the 1894 Sears, Roebuck and Co. 
catalog…of course you’ll have to use the 
Internet, they stopped printing the catalog  
in 1993.

Making and servicing wagons used to be a 
major industry. For the 300,000 Amish living in 
the U.S. today, wagons are a standard mode of 
transportation and they can walk into a 
hardware store in “Amish Country” and still buy 
parts. For the rest of America though, Ford or 
Honda parts are probably a bit more relevant in 
today’s world. 

What is relevant and how does it become more 
or less so, and to whom? These are the 
questions SELF constantly used to review our 
processes and services. In this annual report 
we will take a look at things that have remained 
relevant, things that haven’t, who is affected 
and what lessons we can draw from each case.

You can still find most things that were being 

sold in the 1894 Sears, Roebuck and Co. 

catalog…of course you’ll have to use the 

Internet, they stopped printing the catalog in 

1993.

Making and servicing wagons used to be a 

major industry. For the 300,000 Amish living 

in the U.S. today, wagons are a standard 

mode of transportation and they can walk 

into a hardware store in “Amish Country” and 

still buy parts. For the rest of America 

though, Ford or Honda parts are probably a 

bit more relevant in today’s world. 

What is relevant and how does it become 

more or less so, and to whom? These are the 

questions SELF constantly uses to review our 

processes and services. In this annual report 

we will take a look at things that have 

remained relevant, things that haven’t, who 

is affected and what lessons we can draw 

from each case.

CONTENTS 
Our Mission ___________________________ 1

To Our Members _______________________ 2

Goals _________________________________ 3

Excess Liability Program _______________ 5

Claims Trends _________________________ 6

Optional Excess Liability Coverage _____ 7

Commitment to Excellence ____________ 9

Member Resources ___________________ 10

Board of Directors ____________________ 12

Committees __________________________ 12

Independent Auditor’s Report _________ 16

Staff _________________________________ 40

What a difference from “Hello Mabel” to 

“Hey Siri!” By now teachers have learned 

how to handle smart phones in school 

but more disruptive technologies are on 

their way.
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SELF is a member-owned, statewide partnership 

of public educational agencies providing quality 

pooled programs for excess coverage that  

benefit our students.

OUR MISSION

COVERAGE THAT 
CHANGES WITH 
THE TIMES

Created in 1986 with the founding of SELF, the 

Excess Liability Program Memorandum of Coverage 

has always been painted with a broad brush. The 

document, which describes what is and is not 

covered under membership in the program, was 

drafted by many of the same school district and 

county office employees that had key roles in the 

creation of the JPA itself. Its intent has always been 

to cover more than not, and while exclusions have 

been introduced over the years to protect the 

financial stability of the pool, to this day the 

document does what our founders set out to do— 

protect schools from catastrophic loss.

But as the world around us continues to change, so 

does the SELF MOC. With each new year comes 

advancements in technology and science, changes 

to the legal system stemming from legislation and 

social activism and the new risk exposures that 

accompany all the above.

The SELF Board and staff work diligently to ensure 

that changes that will impact the risks that schools 

face are addressed in the document designed to 

protect them from what has increasingly become a 

more and more litigious society.

The SELF Excess Liability Memorandum of Coverage 

underwent an exhaustive comparison in 2013 

against the underlying coverage documents and 

policies of the membership to assist the Board in 

determining if “follow-form” language should be 

added to the document. Follow form, it was felt, 

would allow SELF to match coverage with any 

underlying document and avoid any possibility of 

coverage gaps in the event of a claim. But what that 

comprehensive review revealed was that the SELF 

MOC was much broader than any commercial policy 

or current participating member JPA MOC, and as 

such, the Board found it unnecessary to add follow 

form language.

SELF continues to review and modify the MOC 

periodically to keep it relevant in terms of new risk 

exposures for our members. In 2015, SELF 

addressed the issue of chartered watercraft being 

used for curriculum based purposes as well as the 

use of drones in both district maintenance and 

curriculum based operations.

In addition to routinely reviewing its coverage 

document, the SELF Board also regularly examines 

the limits of coverage SELF is providing to the 

membership. The Board moved the core limit in the 

Excess Liability Program to $30 million in 2014, at 

no additional cost to the membership, and 

continues to keep a close eye on jury verdicts and 

settlement trends in an effort to determine if the 

core limit is still sufficient to meet current needs. 
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For excess insurance, those forward 
thinking individuals formed SELF. A 
unique entity that would be member 
owned, member run, and exist entirely 
for the benefit of its members.

That decision of 30 years ago remains 
quite relevant today. From the first 
coverage limit of $9 million excess of 
$1 million to today’s $25 million excess 
of $5 million in the SELF core coverage, 
with an Optional Excess Liability 
offering of an additional $25 million, 
SELF remains relevant to over 550 
member districts representing more 
than 2.74 million students.  

The real world issues of 1986 through 
today remain for schools in California. 
Now more than ever, SELF stands as a 
relevant symbol for its members as a 
true partner in dealing with those 
learning experiences of the past 30 
years. More than 3,500 claims reported 

TO OUR MEMBERS

and over $290 million paid to or on 
behalf of SELF members since 1986 is 
another example of relevance— 
relevance in financial stability.      

As SELF moves into its fourth decade, 
the relevance of the organization to its 
members remains at the forefront.  
From providing members current limits 
of up to $50 million and continuing to 
seek larger coverage limits, SELF is 
relevant for its members in preparing 
today for those learning experiences 
that are a result of those real world 
problems.

In education, the term relevance 
typically refers to learning experiences 
that are either directly applicable to or 
connected in some way to real world 
issues and problems. 

When you think of SELF and why the 
JPA was created 30 years ago, one 
can connect the term relevance to 
that beginning. 

Schools in California, as well as other 
public entities around the country, 
were learning of the commercial 
insurance market in a real world sense.  
That lesson was clearly identified in a 
Time Magazine cover that year which 
declared “Your Insurance Has Been 
Cancelled.”

That dilemma required school 
leadership to problem solve in a 
fashion that would provide stability in 
coverage and rate going forward for 
schools in California.

Eric J. Lucas 
Chief Executive Officer

John Didion

Chair



GOALS
n To maintain prudent fiscal and 

claims management to conserve 
member assets

n To develop and provide the 
broadest excess coverage  
programs at the lowest possible 
premium consistent with sound 
actuarial principles

n To obtain, maintain and disseminate 
risk management information and 
technologies associated with 
educational agency exposures

n To be a leader and to work with  
other public agencies in the  
analysis of exposures impacting 
educational agencies

Students used to have one teacher, in a one room 

school house, up through the eighth grade—taking 

down lessons using chalk on slate tablets. That 

might have been sufficient for landing a job in the 

local dry goods store, but today’s international 

competition for jobs demands a lot more. From slate 

tablets to electronic ones and computer labs decked 

out with the latest in technology, students today are 

being taught that flexibility is key and proficiency is a 

moving target. Today we teach them to teach 

themselves so they can keep up with the ever-

changing job market.
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Horseless carriage sounds funny to us today. Will 

driverless cars sound the same to future 

generations? Will preschoolers be dropped off at 

school without a parent and wave good-by to the 

family auto? Will driverless school buses and district 

vehicles be next? And if there is an accident who is 

at fault if there is no driver? These are the 

conversations we will have with our members as 

intelligent cars become reality. At each step, rather 

than reacting to tragedies, SELF uses our 

experience to spot dangers and head 

them off with best practices.
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Excess Liability Program Membership

SOURCE OF FUNDS PERCENT

K-12 & County Offices of 
Education

68.77

Charter Schools 20.07

Community College Districts 4.65

JPAs 4.65

Others 1.86

20.07%

4.65%

4.65%

1.86%

68.77%

K-12 & County Offices of Education
Charter Schools
Community College Districts
JPAs
Others

Excess Liability Program  
Membership 2014/2015
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EXCESS LIABILITY PROGRAM

SELF’s Excess Liability Program continues to be the premier and preferred 
program statewide for California’s public schools and colleges. The program, 
which is the centerpiece of SELF’s offerings to its members, uses established 
methods of loss funding to provide optimal pricing and coverage: pooling—the 
sharing of losses amongst pool participants and reinsurance—for capacity and 
protection of pool assets. 

Since its inception in 1986, the program has paid nearly a quarter billion dollars 
in claims on behalf of members, and has returned in excess of $70 million in 
dividends and rate credits to its members.

The core program currently provides members with limits up to $30 million, 
inclusive of their SIRs, and offers the flexibility of choosing the attachment point 
that is right for their needs. SELF added the additional $5 million in limits to its 
core in 2014/2015 at no additional cost to members and held the rate flat for 
the 2015/2016 program year. 

SELF’s Excess Liability Program—which offers attachment points at $1 million and 
$5 million—focuses on delivering both stability and affordability over the long 
term. SELF is able to achieve both of these goals through a combination of the 
long-term commitments to the program made by our members and a vigorous 
defense of any claims filed against them.

SELF’s rates are established by the Board each spring and are based upon 
sound actuarial principles and studies to provide both adequate funding to the 
program and facilitate the financial planning of our members. 

Delivering packages, spotting wildfires, spying 

on celebrities …drones can be used for all 

sorts of daily tasks. As their popularity grows, 

their prices drop and their operation becomes 

easier, schools may be faced with previously 

unimagined risk and liability challenges 

regarding drone use and SELF will be there to 

help guide them. As part of a recent 

Memorandum of Coverage review, SELF added 

language relevant to the use and operation of 

unmanned aircraft within the scope of official 

business and for curriculum and instructional 

purposes. We are also keeping a close eye on 

developing FAA regulations for drones in an 

effort to keep our members in compliance 

with the law.



Excess Liability Program Payments By Year Paid, 1989-2015
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CLAIMS TRENDS

Making art that completely fools the 

brain has been the Holy Grail for 

artists and scientists since before 

there was a Holy Grail. Now two of 

the senses are about to be 

mastered—sight and sound. Packing 

all the technology of the stereoscope, 

movies, video games, and mobile 

devices into a fashion forward box that fits 

on your head, virtual reality is almost here. It will 

become a teaching tool. Idle time spent pondering 

its usefulness or its lack thereof might not be a 

complete waste of time. It may even make you the 

next tech millionaire.



Challenging Risk Concerns
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During the last decade, jury verdicts and settlement awards have 
continued to skyrocket, reaching sums previously unheard of. Juries are 
not shy about awarding verdicts in the tens of millions and public entities 
and schools are not immune to this trend. 

In 2014 alone, California headlines touted an unprecedented settlement 
of $139.5 million by Los Angeles Unified School District in a multiple 
plaintiff sexual abuse case and a fiery wreck in Northern California 
involving a school bus full of teens on a college tour that resulted in at 
least one $100 million lawsuit.

Concussion cases continue to hit the news regularly and 2014 also saw 
suits filed against the NFL, NHL and NCAA. Many believe it is only a 
matter of time before these suits trickle down to community college and 
high school athletics or even younger.

For those members desiring greater levels of coverage than provided in 
the core program, SELF offers another $25 million in optional higher limits 
to take members’ coverage up to $55 million per occurrence.

Nearly 85 percent of SELF’s 2015/2016 covered ADA purchases greater 
limits through SELF’s Optional Excess Liability (OEL) coverage. This 
additional coverage can be added at any time of year.

OPTIONAL EXCESS  
LIABILITY COVERAGE

Cathy Reineke, Executive 
Director of San Mateo County 
School’s Insurance Group

The SELF Board of 
Directors has long 
been a strong 
advocate of bringing 
risk prevention 
strategies, tools and 
training to the 
membership. As the 
exposures have 
changed and new 
risk exposures have 
arisen over the last 

30 years, SELF has continued to evolve and find 
ways to address those issues for its members. 

In 2010, the Board developed the SELF Risk 
Services Clearinghouse as a way to showcase 
products and services that have proven to be an 
effective means of mitigating certain risk exposures. 
These products and services are thoroughly vetted 
by the Member Services & Communications 
Committee before going on to the full Board of 
Directors where they must pass muster to gain 
admittance into the Risk Services Clearinghouse. 
One such product to be vetted by the Board in 2014 
was Praesidium’s Abuse Prevention Policy Services. 

Area V Board Member Cathy Reineke, Executive 
Director of San Mateo County Schools Insurance 
Group, brought the service to SELF’s attention. 
Engaged by her JPA to review and assess the 
members’ policies, and familiar with their service 
from her previous career in foster care, Reineke felt 
the service could be beneficial to the rest of the 
SELF membership as well.

She said Praesidium has been on top of what is 
easily becoming the largest risk issue for JPAs for 
quite some time. While she doesn’t feel the 
prevalence of abuse has increased from years past, 
she does feel that the 24-hour news cycle has 
brought the topic to the forefront. That, in 

combination with the erosion of professional 
boundaries and decorum in the workplace due to 
social media and the ease with which students can 
be groomed through texting and instant messaging, 
makes a service like Prasesidium’s that much more 
valuable to schools as they try to navigate 
developments that make it easier than ever for 
children to be victimized. 

Reineke has spent 32 years working in risk and 
insurance, with 16 of those years focused on 
schools. During the late 80s and 90s the big risk 
concern for schools was campus shooters—and 
while that’s still an issue, the bigger risk exposure is 
now abuse claims.

She said predators and situational “adventurers” are 
going to go where the opportunity is and schools 
have been lulled into the sense that background 
checks are enough. What is really needed is 
proactive supervision by every person in the school, 
right down to the custodians. 

The focus on the origin of abuse has changed as well. 
“It used to be “stranger danger” but now we know 

that approximately 92 percent of all people abused 
were hurt by someone they know,” Reineke said.

Additionally, the judicial system’s failure to 
consistently enforce and legislative efforts to 
extend—and in one case completely eliminate—the 
statute of limitations related to these cases makes 
reinsuring or adequately funding for these losses 
down the road nearly impossible. 

The challenge that SELF faces is to find solutions, 
legislative or otherwise, that will allow schools an 
even playing field when defending themselves. 

“SELF has always been a leader in looking ahead,” 
Reineke said. “There are a broad array of leaders on 
the Board who know how to stay relevant and be 
ahead of the curve.”



PREVAIL
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Tech companies are going through our wallets and 

trying to get rid of everything they find: cash, credit 

cards, coffee cards, loyalty cards, and transportation 

cards. In some cities you can get by with just using 

your phone. Expect to have a mobile wallet payment 

system come to a cafeteria near you. How will this 

affect kids who can’t afford a compatible device?
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COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE

SELF is committed to excellence in both our internal operations and in the 
relationships we foster with our vendor partners.  

Claims Management
The SELF Board brought the Excess Liability Program claims management 
operations in house in 2010. Since that time, CEO Eric J. Lucas, JD, CPCU, ARM, 
has worked diligently to cultivate a proactive and collaborative claims handling 
culture with the membership guided by a set of key principles developed with 
the SELF Board. 

The Claim Management Policy Statement, which is posted on the SELF website, 
outlines these principles and clearly states what members can expect from SELF 
in terms of coverage determination and settlement participation. The goal in 
developing this document was to clearly define SELF’s role in claims that reach 
the SELF layer, to foster trust with the membership and to improve 
communication.  

The Excess Workers’ Compensation Program ceased offering new coverage effective July 1, 2010. SELF assisted the remaining members in the program with finding 
alternative coverage going forward.

Excess Workers’ Compensation Program - Total Payments By Fiscal Year, 1996-2015

(with recoveries deducted)

Reinsurance Partners
SELF has worked hard to establish solid relationships with each of the reinsurers 
involved with the core Excess Liability Program layer—$25 million in excess of $5 
million and the Optional Excess Liability layer above the core—$25 million in 
excess of $30 million.  

Munich Re, Great American, Allied World Assurance Company (U.S.) Inc., 
Ironshore, Markel and Lexington Insurance are all continuing partners with SELF 
and all hold only the highest ratings—A rated or higher—with A.M. Best. New to 
the mix for 2015/2016 is Argonaut, which also holds an A rating with A.M. Best.

The continuing long-term relationships with these well-capitalized partners further 
strengthens SELF’s financial security.
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The SELF Board has made an ongoing commitment to provide members with the 
resources they need to reduce liability in their districts. SELF offers periodic workshops and 
seminars, interactive online training resources and distributes timely materials to 
accomplish this goal. SELF also partners with our member districts and JPAs through 
co-sponsorship of their own training events.

Training Seminars
SELF has been addressing difficult issues affecting California schools through workshops 
for nearly 17 years. Over time, as the needs of SELF’s members changed, the “When Bad 
Things Happen to Good Schools” seminars were converted from annual live workshops to 
periodic webinars. 

Recently these webinars have focused on best practices surrounding liability transfer and 
investigations of sexual abuse allegations. Recorded copies of these webinars can be 
found stored in the Resource Center for viewing at members’ leisure. 

Risk Management Resource Website
SELF continues to work with long-time partner in2vate llc to provide an interactive risk 
management resource website to SELF members. The SELF Resource Center is free to all 
employees of active members. 

The Resource Center contains online training courses in Preventing Child Sexual Abuse, 
Bullying Prevention (including Cyber-bullying), Technology Safety & Security, the 
mandated California Sexual Harassment Prevention (AB 1825) training and the FACTA 
Identity Theft “Red Flag” Regulatory Compliance Guidance training. An additional 
“member’s choice” option from in2vate’s expansive online training catalog is also offered 
as a benefit to SELF members as well as crisis management resources.

This year, SELF also added a 35-minute training module for the AB 1432 Mandated 
Reporter Training. This free training offers an alternative to the much longer Department 
of Social Services offering on the California Department of Education’s website and 
allows employees to print a certificate immediately following completion of the module.

SELF Risk Services Clearinghouse
Established in 2010 by the SELF Board, the Risk Services  Clearinghouse provides 
endorsement of approved products that further the interest of SELF and the quality of 
education and/or environment for students and staff. 

SELF evaluates risk and safety related products for the clearinghouse based on key 
qualities such as measurable results, cost effectiveness and alignment with SELF’s core 
values and goals.

Current inductees include the Safe School Ambassadors Program, an anti-bullying 
program; Making Right Choices, an educator boundary and sexual misconduct training; 
InjureFREE, a web-based sports injury reporting and tracking application; Praesidium Inc.’s 
Abuse Prevention Policy Development and Assessment Services; and most recently Iritrans 
—a student safety tracking system for use in school transportation.

Quarterly Newsletter
SELF Awareness provides members with timely updates on SELF’s activities and programs, 
relevant legislative and legal news and valuable risk management information. Nearly half of 
SELF’s members receive this publication by electronic mail.

Program Fact Sheet
In the spring, SELF distributes a useful reference card which summarizes programs and 
coverage offerings and provides current rates and contact information.

Association Partnering
SELF continues to cultivate new relationships and nurture established ones with 
organizations that are beneficial to its membership.

Legislative Advocacy
SELF partners with School Services of California, Inc. to keep abreast of pending 
legislation that could have a negative impact on its membership. The SELF Board has 
taken steps to actively oppose legislation that will hurt California’s schools and is 
committed to pursuing legislative avenues to address concerns of the members.

SELF’s Website
SELF maintains a website to provide our members with a convenient source for 
information and updates on SELF’s activities. By visiting our website, you’ll be able to 
obtain rate, program, meeting and training information. You can also request certificates 
of coverage, determine when to file a claim and access the SELF Resource Center 
through the website. Keep an eye on our site for a new look in 2016! www.selfjpa.org

MEMBER RESOURCES
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John Didion

Chair
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As legislation has evolved with the times SELF has 

responded with guidance and solutions for its members. 

Board Chair John Didion recognized a need for further 

training when recent changes were made to Title IX, a 

1972 amendment to the Higher Education Act of 1965, 

that brought the issues of sexual assault and harassment 

both on and off campus to the forefront of the community 

college and K-12 worlds. In a collaboration with legal firm 

Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo SELF produced 

webinars designed to help districts navigate the changes 

in the law, meet new requirements and avoid falling out of 

compliance even as the federal government increased its 

scrutiny of the nation’s schools and adherence to all the 

tenets of the law.

 Similarly, when media attention highlighted several high 

profile multi-victim sexual misconduct cases in California’s 

schools, legislators responded with AB 1432, a new 

mandate, requiring education agencies to annually train 

all employees who are mandated reporters on mandated 

reporting requirements. Partnering with SELF Risk 

Services Clearinghouse member Making Right Choices, 

SELF was able to provide access to training that meets 

this new requirement at no cost to the membership for the 

first half of 2014 and is working on an arrangement that 

could provide it as a member benefit indefinitely.

Adapting to changes in the world around us and providing 

solutions to assist our members in meeting new mandates 

is just one of the many ways that SELF remains relevant to 

California’s schools.

RESPONDING TO 
THE CHANGING 
LEGAL LANDSCAPE



Executive 

The Executive Committee is comprised of 
the SELF Board Officers and each of the 
four committee chairs. This committee 
meets regularly and is kept informed on 
the workings of the other committees with 
input from each committee chair. This 
committee also reviews financial, claims 
and program information. Its responsibilities 
include:

• Personnel

• Organizational issues

• Policy review

Left to right:  
John Didion, Chair  

Nancy Anderson, Member Services & 

Communications 

Diane Crosier, Liability Claims & Coverage  

Tony Nahale, Workers’ Compensation Claims  

& Coverage 

Toan Nguyen, Finance 

Cathy Reineke, Comptroller 

Michael Gregoryk, Past Chair, Member-at-large 

Karla Rhay, Secretary

Not pictured: 
Adam Hillman, Vice Chair 

 

COMMITTEES
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The SELF Board is independent of any member or sponsoring organization. 
Board membership is made up of 16 elected representatives and a host of 
appointed alternates employed by member districts in varied positions 
from chief business officials, top-level administration, risk management and 
human resources. The representatives are elected to four-year terms by 
districts in their respective SELF Areas. Half of the Board is up for election 
every two years. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS



Finance

The Finance Committee oversees the fiscal 
operations of SELF and makes 
recommendations to the Board that ensure 
financial stability. Its responsibilities include:

• Financial and investment operations

• Operating budget

• Actuarial and financial audit services

• Rate-setting process

• Equity distribution process

• Vendor contracts and evaluations

Left to right:  
Bev Wilkinson  

Teresa Scott, Vice Chair  

Toan Nguyen, Chair 

Wael Elatar , Alternate  

Christina Aragon, Alternate 

Kevin McElroy 

Peter Hardash, Alternate 
Renee Hendrick

Liability Claims and Coverage

This committee oversees the liability claims 
operations of SELF. Its responsibilities 
include:

• Reviewing claims and making 
recommendations to the Board on 
settlement or defense of claims

• Determining coverage issues and other 
activities relating to those claims

• Facilitating and developing cooperative 
relationships with members and their TPAs

• Annually reviewing the coverage terms 
and conditions of SELF’s Memorandum 
of Coverage and preparing changes, if 
any, with input from membership, SELF’s 
Chief Executive Officer, insurance 
consultants and coverage counsel for 
the review and approval of the Board  
of Directors

Left to right:  
John Didion, Vice Chair 

Dave George 
Ashley Fenton, Alternate 
Diane Crosier, Chair 
Robin Fawkes, Alternate 

David Flores, Alternate 

Not pictured: 
Adam Hillman 
Charlie Ng, Alternate  

13



Workers’ Compensation Claims and CoverageMember Services and Communications

This committee oversees the workers’ 
compensation claims operations of SELF.  
Its responsibilities include:

• Reviewing workers’ compensation 
claims and making recommendations 
to the Board on settlement or defense of 
claims 

• Determining coverage issues and  
other activities relating to workers’ 
compensation claims

• Facilitating and developing cooperative 
relationships with members and  
their TPAs

This committee serves as a dynamic 
resource for developing and disseminating 
risk management and membership 
information through effective 
communication strategies.  
Its responsibilities include:

• Risk management information

• Training programs

• SELF website management

• Data collection

• Membership marketing, procurement  
and retention

Left to right:  
Tony Nahale, Chair 

George Linn 
Kristine Kamandulis, Alternate 

Dan Mellon, Alternate 

Cathy Reineke, Vice Chair 
Ryan Robison, not pictured

Left to right:  
Nancy Anderson, Chair 

Karla Rhay 

Ed Eng, Alternate 

Susan Harrison Alternate 

Debra Quinones, Alternate

Stefanie Phillips, Alternate

14
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FINANCIALS



The Board of 
Directors and 
Members

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying 
financial statements of Schools Excess 
Liability Fund, which comprise the 
statements of net position as of June 
30, 2015 and 2014, and the related 
statements of revenues, expenses and 
change in net position, and cash flows 
for the years then ended and the 
related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the 
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with 
auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of 
America, the State Controller’s 
Minimum Audit Requirements for 
California Special Districts and the 
standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing 
procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position 
of Schools Excess Liability Fund, as of 
June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the 
changes in its financial position and its 
cash flows for the fiscal years then 
ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of 
America.
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Emphasis of Matter
In June 2012 the GASB issued GASB 
Statement No. 68, “Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions.” Also, 
in November 2013 the GASB issued 
GASB Statement No. 71, “Pension 
Transition for Contributions Made 
Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date”. As discussed in Note 1, 
Statements 68 and 71 are effective for 
the Schools Excess Liability Fund’s fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2015. These 
Statements replace the requirements 
of Statement No. 27, “Accounting for 
Pensions by State and Local 
Governmental Employers” and 
Statement No. 50, “Pension 
Disclosures.” Statements 68 and 71 
establish standards for measuring and 
recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows 
of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources and expenses as well as 
identifies the methods and 
assumptions that should be used to 
project benefit payments, discount 
projected benefit payments to their 
actuarial present value and attribute 
that present value to periods of 
employee service. Note disclosures 
and required supplementary 
information requirements about 

pensions are also addressed. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to 
this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of 
America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
on pages 18 through 25, the 
Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities by 
Type of Contract on pages 34 and 35, 
the Claims Development Information 
on pages 35 through 37, the Schedule 
of the JPA’s Proportionate Share of the 
Net Pension Liability on page 38 and 
the Schedule of the JPA Contributions 
on page 38, be presented to 
supplement the financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part 
of the financial statements, is required 
by Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the financial 
statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in 

accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the financial 
statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the 
financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by 
Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards, we have also 
issued our report dated October 1, 
2015 on our consideration of Schools 
Excess Liability Fund’s internal control 
over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial 

reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering 
Schools Excess Liability Fund’s internal 
control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Crowe Horwath LLP

Sacramento, California

October 1, 2015
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Office. The Board of Directors elects a 
Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, and 
Comptroller for a two-year term from 
the members of the Board of Directors. 
SELF also has an Executive Committee 
comprised of SELF Board Officers, 
including the Past Chair, and the 
Chairs of dedicated committees for 
Finance, Member Services & 
Communications, Liability Claims & 
Coverage, and Workers’ 
Compensation Claims & Coverage. 
The Board of Directors is responsible for 
the ongoing operations of SELF and is 
empowered to implement and 
enforce all provisions of the Joint 
Powers Agreement, the SELF Bylaws, 
and all approved policies and 
procedures.

SELF’s Bylaws delegates the 
responsibility of the daily operation to 
the Chief Executive Officer. SELF 
provides reports on activities to the 
Board of Directors and other 
Committees at regularly scheduled 
meetings throughout the year. The 
Chief Fiscal Officer provides Treasury 
Reports, Financial Statements, and 
other financial reports regularly to the 
Finance Committee, which reviews all 
financial reports before submission to 
the Board of Directors for approval.

Mission Statement
SELF is a member-owned, statewide 
partnership of public educational 

agencies providing quality pooled 
programs for excess coverage that 
benefit our students.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This financial annual report consists of 
three parts: management’s discussion 
and analysis, financial statements, and 
supplementary information. 

• The financial statements include the 
Statements of Net Position, 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses 
and Change in Net Position, and 
Statements of Cash Flows, using the 
direct method for the combined 
operations of SELF for the fiscal years 
ending June 30, 2015 and 2014. The 
notes to the financial statements are 
an integral part of the financial 
statements and provide details on 
SELF membership, accounting 
policies, claims liabilities, and other 
information in the statements.

• The supplementary information 
includes required information on 
Claims Liability by type of program 
for the fiscal years ending June 30, 
2015 and 2014, Claims Development 
Information for the last 10 years for 
self-insured program years by type 
of program, schedule of the JPA’s 
proportionate share of the net 
pension liability, schedule of the 
JPA’s contributions, notes to required 
supplementary information and 
other supplementary information as 

combining financial statements for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 
and 2014. Each program/fund is a 
separate entity requiring separate 
documentation of all assets, 
liabilities, and net position. 
Accounting for the individual 
programs/funds are maintained 
internally and provided to our users 
here to show the performance and 
activity of each program.

Financial Stability
SELF has an equity target of the 
difference between the expected 
(50%) and 95% confidence level 
overall on a discounted basis and a 
catastrophic component of about 
three ultimate losses, currently 
targeting $15 million for the Excess 
Liability Program. Loss reserves will be 
funded at no less than 50% (or 
expected) confidence level for each 
individual program year. Proper equity 
allows SELF to provide stable rates for 
members’ excess liability coverage 
above their retained limits of $1 million 
or $5 million. The Excess Liability 
Program rates remained the same in 
2014/2015 from 2013/2014 rates, while 
increasing excess coverage from $25 
million to $30 million. 

 

Management’s 
Discussion and 
Analysis

Schools Excess Liability Fund (SELF) was 
established March 1, 1986 by a Joint 
Powers Agreement to provide mutual 
risk pooling for public educational 
agencies in California. Under such an 
agreement, two or more public 
agencies may jointly exercise any 
power common to the contracting 
parties. SELF originated with 102 
members in the Excess Liability 
Program in the first year, and grew to 
538 members in 2014/2015. July 1, 
1989, SELF launched the Excess 
Workers’ Compensation Program, 
which closed after the June 30, 2010 
fiscal year, and had 50 members 
during its tenure. SELF continues to 
manage the runoff of workers’ 
compensation claims between July 1, 
1989 and June 30, 2010. SELF is a 
public agency which exists to serve 
our members and the students they 
represent. For financial reporting 
purposes, SELF operates as a special-
purpose government engaged in 
business type activities. 

SELF is governed by sixteen elected 
Board of Directors, alternates, and two 
ex-officio members representing the 
Department of Education and the 
Chancellor of Community Colleges 
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Financial Highlights – Statements  
of Net Position:
The Statement of Net Position shows 
the balances in assets and liabilities, 
by program separated by current, 
long-term, and capital assets. The 
majority of assets are held to fund the 
claims liabilities, which account for 
99% of all liabilities. As of June 30, 2015, 
10.3% of all assets were current while 
89.7% were non-current; this is 
expected due to the nature of excess 
risk pooling. Cash and cash 
equivalents account for 4% of all 
assets. Investments account for 62% of 
all assets; 3% with maturities within one 
year and 97% with maturities greater 
than one year. Member Assessments 
represents the remaining eight years of 
a ten year fixed assessment plan to 
fund excess workers’ compensation 
claims from July 1, 1989 through June 
30, 2010, with the current portion due 
in 2015/2016. SELF, like most self-insured 
workers’ compensation pools, has had 
to assess members, due to the 
continuing increases in indemnity 
expenses over the original estimates 
going back to the program’s inception 
in 1989.

SELF currently owns a building located at 
1531 I Street, in downtown Sacramento, 
CA, which represents 1% of all assets. 
SELF has no long-term debt other than 
the reserved claims liabilities and 
claims administration expenses. 

Assets Liability & Net Position

SELF has received Accreditation with Excellence by the California Association 
of Joint Powers Authorities (CAJPA), since November 1994. The CAJPA 
accreditation program is a national model of professional standards for risk 
management pools, which involves a detailed program study, evaluation, 
and committee review prior to approval. 
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*Less than 1%

Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2015, June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 (in thousands)

     XL  XWC  Building  2014/2015  2013/2014  2012/2013

ASSETS  
 Current Assets $ 6,271  $ 9,469 $ 79  $ 15,819 $ 15,810 $ 22,355
 Non-current Assets  41,324  95,994  0  137,318  145,496  142,425
 Capital Assets  27   11  1,552  1,590  1,440  1,463
Total Assets $ 47,622  $ 105,474 $ 1,631 $ 154,727 $ 162,746 $ 166,243
LIABILITIES   
 Current Liabilities  10,232  5,797  3  16,032  10,353  7,355
 Long-term Liabilities  13,931  92,674  0  106,605   108,500  122,608
Total Liabilities $ 24,163 $ 98,471 $ 3 $ 122,637 $ 118,853 $ 129,963
NET Position   
 Invested in Capital Assets  27  12  1,551  1,590  1,440  1,463
 Undesignated   23,502  7,021  77   30,600   42,453  34,817
Total net position $ 23,529 $ 7,033 $ 1,628 $ 32,190 $ 43,893 $ 36,280

*Please note, amounts in thousands, may not foot and/or may vary from audited financial statements due to rounding.



Financial Highlights – Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses  
and Change in Net Position:
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses 
and Change in Net Position shows the 
activity of SELF from July 1, 2014 
through June 30, 2015 for the Excess 
Liability Program (XL), Excess Workers’ 
Compensation Program (XWC), and 
Building Fund, and a comparison with 
the prior fiscal year’s audited financial 
statements. There are four basic parts 
to this statement: Operating revenues, 
Program expenses, General and 
Administrative expenses, and Non-
operating revenues and expenses. 
Program expenses account for 89% of 
all expenditures and General and 
Administrative expenses were 11%.

Operating revenue are the 
contributions by SELF’s members for 
financing pool-funding requirements 
and Member Assessments. There were 
no additional Member Assessments in 
2014/2015, only a small adjustment of 
prior assessments. Rental income for 
the Building Fund is recorded under 
Non-operating revenues. 

Program expenses are expenses 
directly related to the program’s main 
function, such as claims indemnity, 
claim expenses, and reinsurance or 
excess insurance. These are required 
costs of the fund that would be 
incurred by our members directly, even 
if SELF did not exist. Claims payments 
increased approximately 56% from 
2013/2014. Changes in claims estimates 
increased expenses $3 million in 
2014/2015, compared to a decrease of 
$11 million in 2013/2014. Excess and 

reinsurance premiums increased 7% in 
2014/2015, due to the increase in 
excess liability coverage limit from $25 
million to $30 million, including 
members’ self-insured retentions. 

General and Administrative expenses 
are costs to manage and maintain 
each program, including in-house 
claims management, and indirect 
costs, such as actuarial reports, claims 
audits, and audit fees, which are 
required by law. Actual overhead for 

fiscal year 2014/2015 increased 14% in 
2014/2015 and 6% in 2013/2014. 

Non-operating revenues and expenses 
are income and/or costs not directly 
related to the operation of the 
programs, including rental and 
investment income or loss. They are 
reported in a separate section to 
comply with GASB 34, allowing 
financial statement users to see the 
true operating income or loss before 
any additional or non-typical items are 

included. SELF receives rental income 
from tenants at our property at 1531 I 
Street, Sacramento, CA and 
investment income on retained equity 
in both the Excess Liability and Excess 
Workers’ Compensation programs. Net 
Interest Income, which includes interest 
received and changes in the market 
value of investments, increased 6% in 
2014/2015 from the prior year, due to 
the improving economy and market 
conditions.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Change in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015, June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 (in thousands)

       Totals
     XL  XWC  Building  2014/15  2013/14  2012/13
OPERATING REVENUE:   
 Premiums / Contributions $ 10,294 $  0 $ 0 $ 10,294 $  9,874 $ 9,829
 Member Assessments     ( 10 )  0   ( 10 )  0   1,000
Total operating revenues $ 10,294  $ ( 10 ) $ 0  $ 10,284  $ 9,874  $ 10,829
Program Expenses:   
 Provision for Claims and Claim Adj. Exp.  12,005   1,555   0   13,560   ( 4,433 )  5,529
 Commercial Reinsurance Premiums  7,060  0   0  7,060  6,605  6,610
Total Program Expenses   19,065  1,555     20,620  2,172  12,139
General & Administrative Expense  1,504  713  226  2,443  2,145  2,026
Total Operating Expenses   20,569  2,268  226  23,063  4,317  14,165
Operating Income (Loss) $ ( 10,275 ) $ ( 2,278 ) $ ( 226 ) $ ( 12,779 ) $ 5,557  $ ( 3,336 )
NON-OPERATING Income/ExpensE:    
 Rental income  0  0  255  255  240  62
 Interest income  566  859  0  1,425  1,816  283
 Transfer  (292 )  (58 )  350   0   0   0
 Other Income  3  1  1  5  0  415
Total Non-operating Rev. (Exp.) $ 277 $ 802 $ 606 $ 1,685 $ 2,056 $ 760
Change in Net Position $  ( 9,998 ) $ ( 1,476 ) $ 380  $ ( 11,094 ) $ 7,613  $ ( 2,576 )
  
Net Position, Beginning Balance $ 33,953 $ 8,692 $ 1,248 $ 43,893 $ 36,280 $ 38,856
Cumulative Effect of Change  ( 426 )  ( 183 )  0   ( 609 )  0   0
Net Position, Ending Balance $ 23,529 $ 7,033 $ 1,628 $ 32,190 $ 43,893 $ 36,280

*Please note, amounts in thousands, may not foot and/or may vary from audited financial statements due to rounding. Building Income and Expenses 

are recorded at gross amounts, whereas audited financial statements may net building expenses against income.



As of June 30, 2015, SELF had over a 
96% confidence level in the Excess 
Liability Program, which indicates that 
our actuaries have a high degree of 
certainty that the program is funded 
for all probable losses. The Excess 
Liability Program has benefited from 
many years with minimal claims 
activity. While a few recent claims 
and the restatement of the prior year 
Net Position to record pension liability 
in compliance with GASB 68 has 
lowered equity 44% in 2014/2015, the 
program has sufficient equity due to a 
conservative capital target, striving to 
maintain funds to a 95% confidence 
level and three catastrophic ultimate 
losses above expected reserves.

The Excess Workers’ Compensation 
Program has approximately a 70% 
confidence level, which is considered 
adequate. The Excess Workers’ 

Compensation Program was affected 
by increases in claims costs, resulting in 
member assessments for claims 
between July 1, 1989 and June 30, 
2010. A ten year assessment plan was 
adopted in 2013 and collected an 
additional $12 million in 2013/2014 and 
2014/2015. The plan will be 
reevaluated after the first five years. 
Based on actuary reports for the 
Excess Workers’ Compensation 
Program, completed August 19, 2015 
and July 24, 2014 by Bickmore Risk 
Services, claim liabilities decreased 5%, 
or over $4.7 million between June 30, 
2014 and 2015 estimates. The Excess 
Workers’ Compensation Program net 
position decreased 23%, due to active 
claims management and resolution. 

SELF’s combined net position 
decreased 36% between fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2014 and year ending 

June 30, 2015, due to claim 
reimbursements to members and the 
effects of recording the pension 
obligations in compliance with GASB 
68, based on the CalPERS GASB 68 
Accounting Valuation Report 
prepared for SELF as of the 
measurement date of June 30, 2014.

SELF owns and manages a building in 
downtown Sacramento, at 1531 I 
Street, Sacramento, California. The 
building was purchased in 1993 with 
retained equity and is considered an 
investment of SELF. The equity in the 
Building Fund increased 22% in 
2014/2015. Approximately 65% of the 
building is leased to long-term tenants, 
including the American Lung 
Association of California. The balance 
is used as the SELF office for both the 
Excess Liability and Excess Workers’ 
Compensation programs. SELF 

Overall Financial Position:

INDIVIDUAL PROGRAM 
OVERVIEW:

Revenues by Program/Fund

Sources of Funds maintains the building in order to 
protect and enhance this investment 
of our members’ funds. SELF also has a 
state of the art conference center, 
which is available for use at no charge 
to any of our members.

Expenses by Program/Fund
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Excess Liabilities
SELF was established with the Excess 
Liability Program. In November 1985, a 
group of concerned school business 
officials met and formed a steering 
committee to determine the feasibility 
of establishing a statewide school 
excess liability pool. They wanted to 
combat the growing liability insurance 
crisis and provide public educational 
agencies with a stable and broad 
liability coverage product. SELF began 
offering excess liability coverage 
March 1, 1986. By the end of the first 
year, SELF had 102 members in the 
Excess Liability Program. In 2014/2015, 
SELF had 538 active members across 
the state of California. 

SELF provides an excess liability limit of 
$30 million, with optional excess liability 
available to $55 million, through a 
combination of self-insurance, 
reinsurance, and excess. SELF 
members have retained limits of $1 
million or $5 million. In 2014/2015, SELF 
recognized several claims from prior 
years. Actual claims paid in 2014/2015 
were just over $4 million, while reserves 
increased $8 million; this includes 
recognition of a claim that 
unexpectedly settled after the close of 
the fiscal year. The net effect of Claims 

SELF held $102.6 million in total funds, 
as of June 30, 2015. Approximately 7% 
was liquid in either bank accounts or 
the Local Agency Investment Fund, 
which is considered liquid. 93% of 
funds are held in separate investment 
portfolios for the Excess Liability and 
Excess Workers’ Compensation 
programs, to maximize yield. Each 
portfolio is managed based on the 
cash flow needs of the programs. 
Excess Workers’ Compensation 
investments are generally invested 
longer term, due to the extended 

paid and the Change in Claims 
Reserves for Excess Liability was over 
twice the budgeted amount. 

Excess Workers’ 
Compensation
July 1, 1989, SELF launched the Excess 
Workers’ Compensation Program, 
which closed after the June 30, 2010 
fiscal year, and had 50 members 
during its tenure, with member 
retentions of $250,000 to $2 million. 
SELF purchased excess workers’ 
compensation insurance for all policy 
years, with self-insured retentions of $1 
million to $2 million. SELF continues to 
manage the runoff of workers’ 
compensation claims between July 1, 
1989 and June 30, 2010.

Adverse claims development in historic 
claims resulted in a net deficit position, 
therefore, a multi-year assessment plan 
was adopted beginning June 2003 to 
resolve the deficit position and build 
reserves sufficient to maintain a 
positive net position and provide a 
minimum 65% confidence level. The 
original assessment plan recalculated 
equity yearly and in January 2007 was 
extended to fifteen years, to spread 
the assessment over the life of the 
claims liability. In 2013, a fixed ten year 
assessment plan was initiated to 
provide the members with certainty of 
their annual assessments. The current 

Individual Program  
Overview (Continued): 

nature of these claims. Both portfolios 
are managed to maximize yields over 
time.

Excess Liability
Total Cash and Investments
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plan will be evaluated after the fifth 
year, 2017/2018. SELF has collected 
additional contributions of $52 million 
through 2014/2015.

SELF reimbursed members over $6.3 
million for claims, while the estimated 
claims decreased $4.7 million for $1.5 
million net claims and claims 
adjustment expense realized in 
2014/2015 for self-insured claims from 
July 1, 1989 to June 30, 2010.

Investments

Current Holdings by Type



Budget vs. Actual:
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 (in thousands)

              Variance
       Budget   Actual   Amount   Percent
Operating Revenues $  10,100  $ 10,284  $ 184   2 %
Program Expenses  (11,634 )  (20,620 )  (8,986 )  77 %
General & Administrative Expenses  (2,267 )  (2,443 )  (176 )  8 %
Total Operating Income (Loss) $  (3,801 ) $ (12,779 ) $ (8,978 )  236 %

Non-operating Revenue (Expense)  1,167   1,685   518   44 %
Change in Net Position $ (2,634 ) $ (11,094 ) $ (8,460 )  321 %
 

*Please note, amounts in thousands, may not foot and/or may vary from audited financial statements 

due to rounding.

Actual amounts for the fiscal year 
versus the adopted budget are 
included to show SELF’s financial 
performance in relation to the annual 

plan for the programs. Revenues were 
2% over the adopted budget and 
increased 4% from prior year actuals. 
Total expenses were 66% greater than 

Excess Workers’ Compensation
Total Cash and Investments

Budget verses Actual
SELF develops an annual budget, 
which was reviewed by SELF’s Finance 
Committee on June 12, 2014 and 
approved by the Board of Directors on 
June 27, 2014. SELF operates as a 
business type entity, collecting 
contributions from members each 
fiscal year based on the estimated 
funding for the current year and uses 
retained equity in the program to 
maintain consistent rates from year to 
year. For the fiscal year beginning July 
1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015, 
100% of the SELF’s revenues were from 
member contributions. 

the adopted budget and 449% greater 
than the prior year, which had a 
negative change in claims and claims 
adjustment expense. Total program 
expenses were 77% over the adopted 
budget, mainly due to the realization 
of previously unknown claims from prior 
fiscal years. Claims and claims 
adjustment expenses were 161% 
greater, while reinsurance expenses 
were 10% greater than the adopted 
budget. General and Administrative 
expense was 8% greater than the 
adopted budgeted amount and 14% 
greater than the prior year. Non-
operating revenues were 45% greater 
than the adopted budget and 18% less 
than the prior year.

Operating Revenues 2014/2015 Versus Budget & Prior Year Operating Expense 2014/2015 Versus Budget & Prior Year

Audited 2014/2015       Adopted Budget 2014/2015       Audited 2013/2014
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24      XL  XWC  Building  2015/2016  2014/2015  2013/2014
Operating Revenue:  
 Premiums / Contributions $ 10,673 $ 0 $ 0 $ 10,673 $ 10,100 $ 9,850
 Member Assessments     0   0   0   0   0
Total Operating Revenues $ 10,673 $ 0 $ 0  $ 10,673  $ 10,100 $ 9,850

Program Expenses: 
 Provision for Claims & Claims Adj. Exp.   2,822  0  0  2,822  5,200  3,445
 Commercial Reinsurance Premiums  7,383  0  0  7,383  6,434  6,529
Total Program Expenses  10,205  0    10,205  11,634  9,974
General & Administrative Expense  1,460  543  282  2,285  2,267  2,375
Total Operating Expenses  11,665  543  282  12,490  13,901  12,349
Operating Income (Loss) $ (992 ) $ (543 ) $ (282 ) $ (1,817 ) $ (3,801 ) $ (2,499 )

Non-Operating Income / Expense:           
 Rental Income  0  0  234  234  255  236
 Interest Income  767  1,296  0  2,063  1,428  1,101
 Other Income  0  0  0  0  0  13
Total Non-operating Rev. (Exp.) $ 767 $ 1,296 $ 234 $ 2,297 $ 1,683 $ 1,350
Change in Net Position $ (225 ) $ 753  $ (48 ) $ 480  $ (2,118 ) $ (1,149 )
Net Position, Beginning Balance $ 24,249 $ 7,248 $ 1,303 $ 32,800 $ 35,434 $ 40,028
Net Position, Ending Balance $ 24,024 $ 8,001 $ 1,255 $ 33,280 $ 33,316 $ 38,879

     XL  XWC  Building  2014/2015  2013/2014  2012/2013
Operating Revenue:  
 Premiums / Contributions $ 10,100 $ 0 $ 0 $ 10,100 $ 9,850 $ 9,656
 Member Assessments  0   0   0   0   0   (432 )
Total Operating Revenues $ 10,100 $ 0 $ 0 $ 10,100 $ 9,850 $ 9,224
Program Expenses: 
 Provision for Claims & Claims Adj. Exp.   3,500  1,700  0  5,200  3,445  2,000
 Commercial Reinsurance Premiums  6,434  0    0  6,434  6,529  6,497
Total Program Expenses  9,934  1,700  0  11,634  9,974  8,497
General & Administrative Expense  1,339  714  214  2,267  2,375  2,054
Total Operating Expenses  11,273  2,414  214  13,901  12,349  10,551
Operating Income (Loss) $ (1,173 ) $ (2,414 ) $ (214 ) $ (3,801 ) $ (2,499 ) $ (1,327 )

Non-Operating Income / Expense:           
 Rental Income  0  0  255  255  236  158
 Interest Income  513  399  0  912  1,101  1,778
 Other Income  0  0  0  0  13  0
Total Non-operating Rev. (Exp.) $ 513 $ 399 $ 255 $ 1,167 $ 1,350 $ 1,936
Change in Net Position $ (660 ) $ (2,015 ) $ 41  $ (2,634 ) $ (1,149 ) $ 609

Future Budget:
Adopted Budget 
For the years ended June 30, 2015, June 30, 

2014, and June 30, 2013 (in thousands)

The Schools Excess Liability Fund’s 
fiscal year 2015/2016 Operating 
Budget was reviewed by the Finance 
Committee on June 11, 2015 and 
approved by the Board of Directors on 
June 19, 2015. 

Budget 2014/2015:
Adopted Budget 
For the years ended June 30, 2015, June 30, 

2014, and June 30, 2013 (in thousands)

*Please note, amounts in thousands, may not 

foot and/or may vary from audited financial 

statements due to rounding.
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Factors Bearing on the 
Future:
Equity Position:
The Schools Excess Liability Fund is 
accredited by California Association 
of Joint Powers Authorities (CAJPA) 
with Excellence. Their accreditation is 
based on a model of professional 
standards for risk management pools. 
CAJPA standards require a Capital 
Reserve, which sets a safety reserve to 
safeguard against future financial 
uncertainty, and measures for financial 
stability. Several formulas have been 
established to measure a pool’s 
financial stability and sensitivity to risk. 
There are five key formulas: Claims 
Liability Confidence Levels, Equity to 
Self-Insured Retention (SIR), Loss 
Reserves to Equity, Contributions to 
Equity, and Claims Liability with 
Premium Method. Both programs have 
more than six months of cash flow 
available for normal ongoing 
operations and investments are 
sufficiently liquid to provide funds for 
any unexpected claim payments. 

Excess Liability:
As of June 30, 2015, the Excess Liability 
Program had ideal levels of funding, 
based on all five equity target 
formulas. The program has a 96% 
confidence level, indicating that it is 
well funded. The contributions to 
equity and loss reserves to equity are 
well within the desired levels. The 

equity to self-insured retention level 
and claims liability with premium 
method are also within the desired 
measures. Furthermore, this program is 
only 13% under SELF’s ambitious Target 
Capital of a 95% confidence level and 
additional funding for three 
catastrophic losses.

Excess Workers’ Compensation:
As of June 30, 2015, the Excess 
Workers’ Compensation Program 
possessed three of the five equity 
targets. The program is just under a 
70% confidence level. The assessment 
contributions to equity and equity to 
self-insured retention levels are also 
within the desired measures. The only 
factor that is not in the desired range is 
the loss reserves to equity, with loss 
reserves approximately 14 times the 
net available to fund claims. This is a 
measure of a pools ability to absorb 
unexpected losses. Since this program 
has been closed for five years, this 
factor is less relevant. The last factor, 
claims liability with premium method, is 
not applicable. This program is 21% 
under SELF’s ambitious Target Capital 
of a 95% confidence level and 
additional funding for three 
catastrophic losses. 

Retained Earnings History

Future of Organization:
SELF is proactive in managing claims 
and risk factors, providing expert 
assistance to our members, even in 
claims below our retention level. SELF 
provides a variety of training tools and 
strives to improve the knowledge of 
our members in the area of risk 
management. The Excess Workers’ 
Compensation Program has improved 
with active claims management and 
resolution. SELF has been working with 

our members and their third party 
administrators to audit claims and 
identify opportunities to close open 
claims via Compromise and Release, 
realizing cost savings for our members 
and reducing liabilities. SELF will 
continue to seek potential prospects in 
the insurance market to provide better 
coverage for our members, explore 
new opportunities to improve 
programs, and provide costs savings 
for our members. 
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Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2015 and 2014

     2015  2014
ASSETS  
Current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 6,406,534 $ 8,290,947
 Receivables:
  Interest and other receivables  361,295  304,990
  Member receivables  91  -
 Investments maturing within one year (Note 2)  2,653,922  802,262
 Current portion of member assessment receivable (Note 3)  6,355,281  6,373,695
 Prepaid expenses  42,159  38,004
  Total current assets  15,819,282  15,809,898
Investments, less portion maturing within one year (Note 2)  92,840,360  94,652,901
Member assessment receivable (Note 3)  44,477,964  50,843,120
Capital assets (Note 4):
 Investment in building, net of accumulated depreciation
  of $1,596,932  and $1,495,231  for 2015 and 2014, respectively 1,551,368  1,397,546 
 Furniture and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
  of $317,218  and $303,805  for 2015 and 2014, respectively  38,297  42,159
  Total non-current assets  138,907,989  146,935,726
  Total assets  154,727,271  162,745,624
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources – pensions (Note 6)  99,437  -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
 Accounts payable  432,801  453,280
 Current portion of unpaid claims and claim adjustment
  expenses (Note 5)  14,891,358  9,900,000
   Total current liabilities  15,324,159  10,353,280
Net pension liability  542,029  -
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (Note 5)  106,604,738  108,499,378
   Total liabilities  122,470,926  118,852,658
Contingencies (Note 8)
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources – pensions (Note 6)  166,153  -
NET POSITION
Net position:
 Net Investment in capital assets (Note 4)  1,589,665  1,439,705
 Unrestricted (Note 7)  30,599,964  42,453,261
   Total net position $ 32,189,629 $ 43,892,966

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses & Change in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

     2015  2014
Operating revenues:
 Member contributions $ 10,293,954 $ 9,873,823
 Member assessment (Note 3)  (9,875 )  - 
  Total operating revenues  10,284,079  9,873,823
Operating expenses:
 Provision for claims and claim adjustment
  expenses (Note 5)  13,559,471   (4,433,071 )
 Commercial reinsurance premiums  7,060,714  6,605,173
  Total operating expenses  20,620,185  2,172,102
 General and administrative expenses:
  Contract services  611,886  510,712
  Personnel costs (Note 6)  1,141,498  927,970
  Administrative expenses  370,153  334,657
  Travel expenses  81,816  112,237
  Building expenses  122,985  134,418
  Depreciation (Note 4)  115,114  124,603
   Total general and administrative expenses  2,443,452  2,144,597
   Total operating expenses  23,063,637   4,316,699
   Total Operating (loss) income   (12,779,558 )  5,557,124
Non-operating revenues:
 Rental income  254,822  239,538
 Investment income  1,425,311  1,816,379
 Other income   4,540  -
   Total non-operating revenues  1,684,673   2,055,917 
   Change in net position  (11,094,885 )  7,613,041
Net position, beginning of year, originally stated  43,892,966   36,279,925 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  (608,452 )  -
Net position, beginning of year, as restated  43,284,514   36,279,925
Net position, end of year $ 32,189,629 $ 43,892,966 
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

     2015  2014
Cash flows from operating activities:
 Cash received from members and others $ 16,667,343 $ 16,214,813
 Cash paid for claims and settlements  (10,462,753 )  (6,673,390 )
 Cash paid for reinsurance  (7,064,869 )  (6,595,886 )
 Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services  (1,207,319 )  (1,094,311 )
 Cash paid for employees services  (1,282,930 )  (927,970 )
  Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities  (3,350,528 )  923,256
Cash flows used in capital and related financing activities:
 Capital expenditures for building, furniture and equipment  (265,074 )  (101,890 )
Cash flows from investing activities:
 Securities purchased   (61,316,066 )  (76,004,554 )
 Securities sold and matured  61,353,393  74,164,378
 Rental income received  254,822  239,538
 Interest received  1,439,040  1,088,333
  Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  1,731,189   (512,305 )
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (1,884,413 )  309,061 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  8,290,947  7,981,886
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 6,406,534 $ 8,290,947
Reconciliation of operating (loss) income to net cash
 (used in) provided by operating activities:
   Operating (loss) income $ (12,779,558 ) $ 5,557,124
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
     net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
      Depreciation  115,114   124,603 
      Increase in member receivable  (306 )  5,003 
      Decrease in assessment receivable  6,383,570   6,335,987 
      Increase in prepaid expenses  (4,155 )  9,287 
      Decrease in accounts payable  (20,479 )  (2,287 )
      Increase in unpaid claims and claim adjustment
       expenses  3,096,718   (11,106,461 )
       Total adjustments  9,429,030   (4,633,868 )
       Net cash (used in) provided by  
        operating activities $ (3,350,528 ) $ 923,256
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements.

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES
General Description: Schools Excess Liability 
Fund (SELF) is a statewide Joint Powers Agency 
established as a program to pool excess liability 
and workers’ compensation coverage for 
participating California public educational 
agencies. Effective July 1, 2010, SELF no longer 
offered an Excess Workers’ Compensation 
Program. SELF will continue to provide 
administration of this program through the 
claims run-out period. Participation in SELF is 
voluntary, and members must remain in the 
program for three fiscal years before they are 
eligible to withdraw.

Membership: Under the SELF Joint Powers 
Agreement, member districts must make a 
three-year commitment to participate in SELF. 
Mid-term cancellation or withdrawal is not 
permitted and members’ annual contributions 
are due in advance. As such, all contributions 
are recognized evenly over the applicable 
coverage year. Withdrawing districts may be 
entitled to a refund under certain conditions five 
years after withdrawal. There were no amounts 
held for member withdrawal at June 30, 2015 
and June 30, 2014.

SELF’s Excess Liability Program membership 
currently consist of approximately 538 public 
educational entities including school districts, 
county offices of education, community college 
districts, charter schools, regional occupational 
programs and education affiliated joint powers 
authorities

The Excess Workers’ Compensation Program was 
discontinued by the Board in 2010, however at 
the height of the program the covered payroll 
was more than $8.9 billion with membership 
consisting of entire JPAs, individual school 
districts and community college districts.

Basis of Accounting: The accompanying 
financial statements are presented as a 
proprietary fund on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with Governmental 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 
Under the accrual basis, revenues and the 
related assets are recognized when earned, 
and expenses and related liabilities are 
recognized when the obligation is incurred. 
Operating revenues include member 
contributions net of any applicable rate credits 
and member assessments. Operating expenses 
include the provision for claims and claim 
adjustment expenses, insurance premiums, 
premium rebates, and general and 
administrative expenses. All other revenues and 
expenses are considered non-operating. 

Fund Accounting: The accounts of SELF are 
organized on the basis of funds, each of which 
is considered to be a separate accounting 
entity. SELF’s funds have been combined for the 
presentation of the financial statements. The 
operation of each fund is accounted for by 
providing a set of separate self-balancing 
accounts that comprised its assets, liabilities, net 
position, revenues and expenses. SELF maintains 
three funds that are considered proprietary/
enterprise funds. Proprietary funds are used to 
account for activities similar to those found in 
the private sector, where the determination of 
net income is necessary or useful to sound 
financial administration.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued) 
Programs:  

Excess Liability: Since 1986 SELF has provided excess liability insurance to schools and  
community colleges.  
 Policy Years Member Retentions  SELF Layer
 1986–8/4/1989 $1M $1M – $10M
 8/5/1989–1990 $1M $1M – $12.5M
 1991 $1M $1M – $15M
 1992–2006 $1M – $5M $1M – $15M
 2007–2008 $1M – $5M $1M – $20M
 2009 $1M – $5M  Fully Insured
 2010–2014 $1M – $5M $1M – $25M
 2015 $1M – $5M $1M – $30M

With optional purchased coverage:
  OEL - OEL - OEL - OEL -
 Policy Years Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4
 1990 $6.5M – $12.5
 1991–2000 $5M – $15M $10M – $15M
 2001 $5M – $15M $10M – $15M $15M – $25M $10M – $40M
 2002 $5M – $15M $10M – $15M $35M – $15M
 2003-2006 $5M – $15M $10M – $15M $30M – $15M
 2007 $5M – $20M $20M – $25M 
 2008 $5M – $20M $20M – $25M $5M – $45M
 2009 $20M – $25M $25M – $25M $5M – $45M
 2010–2014 $20M – $25M $25M – $25M
 2015 $25M – $30M

Excess Workers’ Compensation: In 1990 SELF added excess workers’ compensation coverage.  
2010 was the last policy year SELF offered excess workers’ compensation insurance coverage.
 Policy Years Member Retentions SELF Retention
 1990–1999 $250K – $2M $2M
 2000–2004 $250K – $1M $1M
 2005 $300K -- $1M $1M
 2006-2010 $350K -- $1M $1M

Excess Insurance: SELF enters into excess 
insurance agreements whereby it cedes various 
amounts of risks to another entity. Risks ceded 
are treated as though they are not risks for 
which SELF is liable. 

Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents are 
investments readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash with original maturities at date 
of purchase of less than three months.

Investment in Building, Furniture and Equipment: 
Building, furniture and equipment are carried at 
cost. Depreciation is determined using the 
straight-line method, over the useful lives of the 

related assets. The useful lives of the building 
and improvements are estimated to be thirty 
years. SELF has forty-five percent of the building 
available to lease to third parties under 
noncancellable leases.

The useful lives of furniture and equipment are 
estimated to be five years. When assets are sold 
or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related 
accumulated depreciation are removed from 
the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is 
recognized in the statement of revenues, 
expenses and change in net position for the 
period. The cost of maintenance and repairs is 
charged to expense as incurred.

SELF does not believe there to be any 
impairment of its capital assets at June 30, 2015.

Investments and Investment Pools: SELF records 
its cash in Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
and its other investments at fair value. Changes 
in fair value are reported as non-operating 
revenue in the statement of revenues, expenses 
and change in net position. The effect of 
recording investments and LAIF at fair value is 
reflected as a component of investment income 
on the statement of revenues, expenses and 
change in net position.

Fair value of investments and LAIF has been 
determined by the sponsoring government 
based on quoted market prices. SELF’s 
investment in LAIF has been valued based on 
the relative fair value of the entire external pool 
to the external pool’s respective amortized cost.

Member Assessment Receivable: SELF’s JPA 
Agreement allows for assessments to address 
deficit position assets. Assessments are based on 
a pro rata share of each member’s contribution 
for each policy year assessed. In the event that 
a member fails to meet their payment schedule, 
the member shall be charged interest in a 
manner and amount earned on funds deposited 
in LAIF, at the time the member is delinquent.

Provisions for Unpaid Claims and Claim 
Adjustment Expenses: SELF’s policy is to establish 
unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 
based on estimates of the ultimate cost of 
claims that have been reported but not settled, 
and of claims that have been incurred but not 
reported. The length of time for which such costs 
must be estimated varies depending on the 
coverage involved. Estimated amounts of 
salvage, subrogation and reinsurance 
recoverable on unpaid claims are deducted 
from the liability. SELF increases the liability for 
allocated and unallocated claim adjustment 
expenses. Because actual claims costs depend 
on such complex factors as inflation, changes in 
doctrine of legal liability, and damage awards, 
the process used in computing unpaid claims 
and claim adjustment expenses does not 
necessarily result in an exact amount, 
particularly for excess coverages. Unpaid claims 
and claim adjustment expenses are recomputed 
periodically using a variety of actuarial and 
statistical techniques to produce current 
estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim 

frequency, other economic and social factors 
and estimated payment dates. Adjustments to 
unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 
are charged or credited to expense in the 
period in which they are made. The current 
portion of the claims liabilities has been 
estimated by an independent actuary using 
cash flow projections and current claims 
information.

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net 
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information 
about the fiduciary net position of the 
Miscellaneous 2% at 55 Risk Pool under the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS) and additions to/deductions from the 
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the Pool. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 

Member Contributions: Operating revenues and 
expenses include all activities necessary to 
achieve the objectives of SELF and result from 
exchange transactions associated with the 
principal activity of the fund. Exchange 
transactions are those in which each party 
receives and gives up essentially equal values. 
Non-operating revenues and expenses include 
investment activities, building income from non-
exchange and other non-essential activity. 

Commercial Reinsurance Premiums: It is the 
policy of SELF to purchase additional insurance 
which covers losses greater than the limits of 
SELF’s excess coverage. Such additional 
insurance coverage is offered to members 
through an Optional Excess Liability Program 
(OEL). The OEL premium is reported as part of 
Member Contributions.

Income Taxes: SELF is an organization comprised 
of public agencies and is exempt from Federal 
income and California franchise taxes. 
Accordingly, no provision for Federal or state 
income taxes has been made in the 
accompanying financial statements.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial 
statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United 
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States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions. Significant 
estimates for SELF include unpaid claims and 
claim adjustment expense and member 
assessment receivable. These estimates and 
assumptions affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from these 
estimates.

Reclassifications: Certain prior year balances 
have been reclassified to conform with current 
year financial statement presentation. These 
reclassifications had no effect on the reported 
results of operations or net position. 

New Accounting Pronouncements: In June 2012, 
the GASB issued Statement 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions. This Statement 
replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, 
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local 
Governmental Employers and Statement No. 50, 
Pension Disclosures, as they relate to 
governments that provide pensions through 
pension plans administered as trusts or similar 
arrangements that meet certain criteria. 
Statement 68 requires governments providing 
defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-
term obligation for pension benefits as a liability 
for the first time, and to more comprehensively 
and comparably measure the annual costs of 
pension benefits. The Statement also enhances 
accountability and transparency through 
revised and new note disclosures and RSI. This 
Statement is effective for the JPA’s financial 
period beginning July 1, 2014. The JPA did not 
retroactively implement these statements as of 
July 1, 2013 because the defined benefit plan 
the JPA participates in, the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), did 
not have the information readily available. 
Therefore, certain disclosures required under 
previous GASB statements are disclosed for fiscal 
year 2014. Based on the implementation of 
Statement No. 68, the JPA’s July 1, 2014 net 
position was restated by $608,452 because of 
the recognition of the net pension liability. 

NOTE 2 – CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 are reported at fair value and 
consisted of the following:

      Rating  2015  2014
Cash and cash equivalents:
 Cash on hand and in bank     $ 686,244 $ 427,721
 Money Market      880,300  320,755
 Local Agency Investment Fund     4,839,990  7,542,471
  Total cash and cash equivalents    6,406,534  8,290,947
Investments:
 United States Agency – FHLB, FNMA  AA+  38,693,285  48,573,304
 FHLMC      2,861,727  1,202,229
 Corporate Notes    AAA, AA+, A+, AA, A, A-, AA-  28,828,508  27,374,004
 U.S. Treasury    TSY  2,023,906  -
 Certificates of deposit    A+, A-1  13,746,352  14,953,871
 Municipal bonds and notes    AA+, AAA, AA  9,340,504  3,351,755
  Total investments      95,494,282  95,455,163
  Total cash, cash equivalents and investments  $ 101,900,816 $ 103,746,110
Reconciliation to statement of net position:
 Current assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents     $ 6,406,534 $ 8,290,947 
  Investments      2,653,922  802,262
        9,060,456  9,093,209
 Non-current assets:
  Investments      92,840,360  94,652,901
   Total     $ 101,900,816 $ 103,746,110

Custodial Credit Risk: Cash balances held in 
banks are insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC. At 
June 30, 2015, the carrying amount of SELF’s 
accounts was $685,922 and bank balances 
were $1,135,368. Of the bank balances, $885,368 
were not covered by FDIC insurance, but are 
fully collateralized.

Money Market: SELF has a portion of its cash 
and cash equivalents in a money market 
account at a third party custodian. The money 
market account is not covered by FDIC 
insurance, but is fully collateralized.

Local Agency Investment Fund: SELF places 
certain funds with the State of California’s Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). SELF is a 
voluntary participant in LAIF, which is regulated 

by California Government Code Section 16429 
under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State 
of California and the Pooled Money Investment 
Board. The State Treasurer’s Office pools these 
funds with those of other governmental 
agencies in the State and invests the cash. The 
fair value of SELF’s investment in the pool is 
reported in the accompanying financial 
statements based upon SELF’s pro-rata share of 
the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that 
portfolio). Because the Group’s deposits are 
maintained in a recognized Pooled Investment 
Fund (Fund) under the care of a third party and 
the Group’s share of the pool does not consist of 
specific, identifiable investment securities owned 
by the Group, no disclosure of the individual 

deposits and investments or related custodial 
credit risk classifications is required. The balance 
available for withdrawal is based on the 
accounting records maintained by LAIF, which 
are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Funds 
are accessible and transferable to the master 
account within twenty-four hours notice. 
Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are 
collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-
backed securities, other asset-backed securities, 
and floating rate securities issued by Federal 
agencies, government-sponsored enterprises 
and corporations. LAIF is administered by the 
State Treasurer. As of June 30, 2015, this Fund 
was yielding approximately 0.269% interest 
annually. LAIF investments are audited annually 
by the Pooled Money Investment Board and the 
State Controller’s Office. Copies of this audit 
may be obtained from the State Treasurer’s 
Office: 915 Capitol Mall; Sacramento, California 
95814. The Pooled Money Investment Board has 
established policies, goals and objectives to 
make certain that their goal of safety, liquidity 
and yield are not jeopardized. 

Investment Interest Rate Risk: SELF’s investment 
policy limits investment maturities to a maximum 
of five years, with Board approval for any 
investment purchase with a maturity beyond 
five years as a means of managing its exposure 
to fair value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates. Maturities of investments held at June 30, 
2015 consist of the following:

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued)



Investment Credit Risk: SELF’s investment policy 
limits investment choices to obligations of the 
United States Treasury, its agencies and 
instrumentalities, Federal agency or United Sates 
sponsored enterprise obligations, State of 
California or any local agency within the state, 
Banker’s Acceptances Commercial short-term 
paper, corporate medium-term notes, FDIC 
insured or fully collateralized time certificates of 
deposit located in California, negotiable 
certificates of deposit issued by nationally or 
state-chartered bank, savings, or federal 
associations, State of California’s Local Agency 
Investment Fund, insured savings or money 
market accounts, money market funds 
registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Investment Company Act 
of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Sec. 80a-1 et seq.), mortgage 
securities or obligations, The California Asset 

Management Program, and Supranationals 
located within the United States (CA Gov. Code 
§53651(j)). At June 30, 2015 and 2014, all 
investments, excluding LAIF, were issued, 
registered and held by SELF’s agent in the 
Agency’s name.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk: SELF 
attempts to limit its investments in any one bank 
or corporation to no more than 5% of SELF’s total 
investments at the time of purchase. At June 30, 
2015 and 2014, SELF had the following 
investments that represent more than five 
percent of the SELF’s net investments:

  2015 2014
 FNMA 41% 35%
 FHLMC 0% 10%
 Tenn Valley Authority 5% 5%

NOTE 2 – CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

     Maturity 
          Between
         Less Than  One and
      Fair Value  One Year  Five Years
Investment maturities:
 United States Agency – FHLB, FNMA, $ 38,693,285 $ - $ 38,693,285
 FHLMC    2,861,727  -  2,861,727 
 Corporate Notes    28,828,508  -  28,828,508 
 U.S. Treasury    2,023,906  -  2,023,906
 Certificates of deposit    13,746,352  -  13,746,352
 Municipal bonds and notes    9,340,504  2,653,922  6,686,582
     $ 95,494,282 $ 2,653,922 $ 92,840,360

Maturities of investments held at June 30, 2014 consist of the following:

     Maturity 
          Between
         Less Than  One and
      Fair Value  One Year  Five Years
Investment maturities:
 United States Agency – FHLB, FNMA, $ 48,573,304 $ - $ 48,573,304
 FHLMC    1,202,229  -  1,202,229
 Corporate Notes    27,374,004  -  27,374,004
 Certificates of deposit    14,953,871  500,087  14,453,784
 Municipal bonds and notes    3,351,755  302,175  3,049,580
     $ 95,455,163 $ 802,262 $ 94,652,901

NOTE 3 – MEMBER 
ASSESSMENT RECEIVABLE

Adverse loss development and increases in the 
incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims liability 
resulted in a deficit fund position, for the certain 
policy years, in the Excess Workers’ 
Compensation Program. Although the program 
has assets for continued operation, the Board 
approved an assessment of Excess Workers’ 
Compensation as provided in SELF’s JPA 
Agreement. Assessments are based on a pro 
rata share of each member’s contributions for 
each year assessed. The assessment plan 
provides for collection from members for the ten 
year period from 2012–13 through 2021–22 with 

a review of funding status in the 2017–2018 fiscal 
year. At June 30, 2015 and 2014 SELF made no 
allowance for uncollected accounts as 
management estimated the accounts to be 
materially collectable. The assessment receivables 
at June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

   2015  2014

Member assessment  
 receivable $ 50,833,245 $ 57,216,815

Less current portion of  
 member assessment 
 receivable  (6,355,281)  (6,373,695)

Member assessment 
 receivable,  
 non-current $ 44,477,964 $ 50,843,120
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS
Activity for capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 included the following:

     2015  2014
Capital assets, net of depreciation – beginning of year $ 1,439,705 $ 1,462,418
Purchases  265,074  101,890
Current year depreciation  (115,114 )  (124,603 )
Capital assets, net of depreciation – end of year $ 1,589,665  $ 1,439,705
Investment in building, net of accumulated
 depreciation $ 1,551,368 $ 1,397,546
Furniture and equipment, net of accumulated
 depreciation  38,297  42,159
    $ 1,589,665 $ 1,439,705
 
NOTE 5 – UNPAID CLAIMS AND CLAIM ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES
As discussed in Note 1, SELF established a liability for both reported and unreported insured events 
for the Excess Workers’ Compensation and the Excess Liability programs. The following represents 
changes in those aggregate liabilities during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

     2015  2014
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses,
 beginning of year $ 118,399,378 $ 129,507,838
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:
 Provision for covered events of current year  2,798,997  2,740,355
 Change in the provision for covered events of prior years  10,760,474   (7,173,426 )
   Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses  13,559,471   (4,433,071 )
Payments:
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
  covered events of current year  -  -
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
  covered events of prior years  10,462,753  6,675,389
   Total payments  10,462,753  6,675,389
   Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses,
    end of year $ 121,496,096  $ 118,399,378
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At June 30, 2015 and 2014, this liability was reported at present value using an expected future 
investment yield assumption of 1.75% for the Liability Program and 2.75% for the Workers’ 
Compensation Program. The workers’ compensation discount rate has been adjusted for the years 
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 to reflect the fact that a portion of the necessary assets is not 
available. The undiscounted liability was $146,789,000 and $144,736,000 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively.

NOTE 6 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S 
RETIREMENT FUND 
General Information about the Public Employer’s Retirement Fund
Plan Description: 
SELF contributes to the Miscellaneous 2% at 55 Risk Pool under the California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system 
defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The Plan provides retirement and disability 
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  
A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements is established by State statutes within the 
Public Employees’ Retirement Law. The Plan selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu 
by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through Board approval. CalPERS issues a 
separate comprehensive annual financial report. CalPERS issues a publicly available financial report 
that can be obtained at https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/forms-publications/cafr-2014.pdf

Funding Policy:  New employees hired after January 1, 2013 are subject to the California Public 
Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) and related statutory changes. PEPRA requires 
contributions from employees to the defined benefit plan equal to one-half of normal cost of the 
plan. For 2013/2014 employees subject to the PEPRA regulations are required to contribute 6.25% of 
their annual covered salary. Participants not subject to PEPRA are required to contribute 7% of their 
annual covered salary. Under a 2006 Board resolution, SELF makes the contribution required of SELF 
management staff on their behalf and for their account. SELF is required to contribute at an 
actuarially determined rate. SELF’s contribution rate on covered payroll for PEPRA employees is 
6.25%, as required by law and 14.873% all other employees for the year ended June 30, 2015. The 
contribution requirement of plan members and SELF are established and may be amended by 
CalPERS and related statutory changes. For the year ended June 30, 2015, SELF’s annual pension 
cost was $(293). SELF’s contributions to CalPERS for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2012, 2013 and 
2014 were $145,608, $115,572 and $98,232, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions 
for each year.

Benefits Provided: The benefits for the defined benefit plans are based on members’ years of service, 
age, final compensation, and benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors 
of eligible members or beneficiaries. Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned 
to date after five years of credited service.

Contributions: The benefits for the defined benefit pension plans are funded by contributions from 
members and employers, and earnings from investments. Member and employer contributions are a 
percentage of applicable member compensation. Member contribution rates are defined by law 
and depend on the respective employer’s benefit formulas. Employer contribution rates are 
determined by periodic actuarial valuations or by state statute. Actuarial valuations are based on 
the benefit formulas and employee groups of each employer. Employer contributions, including lump 
sum contributions made when agencies first join the Pool, are credited with a market value 
adjustment in determining contribution rates. 

Required contribution rates for active plan members and employers as a percentage of payroll for 
the year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Members – The member contribution rate was 7.0 percent of applicable member earnings for fiscal 
year 2013-14. 

Employers – The employer contribution rate was 13.369 percent of applicable member earnings.

The JPA contributed $75,009 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2015, the JPA reported a liability of $542,029 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used 
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by a CalPERS actuarial valuation as of that 
date. The JPA’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the JPA’s long-
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating school JPAs, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2014, the JPA’s proportion was 0.02193 
percent, which was an increase of 0.00107 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2013.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the JPA recognized pension expense of $(293). At June 30, 2015, 
the JPA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources:

       Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
      of Resources  of Resources
Difference between expected and  $  - $  -
 actual experience 
Changes of assumptions    $  - $  -
Net differences between projected and
 actual earnings on investments   $  - $  136,698
Changes in proportion and differences
 between JPA contributions and 
 proportionate share of contributions  $  - $  29,455
Contributions made subsequent to
 measurement date    $  99,437 $  -
  Total    $  99,437 $  166,153

NOTE 5 – UNPAID CLAIMS AND CLAIM ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES 
(continued) 
The components of the unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses as of June 30, 2015 
and 2014 were as follows:
     2015  2014
Reported claims $ 74,322,042 $ 79,012,712
Claims incurred but not reported  38,215,947  33,130,841
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE)  8,958,107  6,255,825
      121,496,096  118,399,378
Less current portion  (14,891,358 )  (9,900,000 )
        $ 106,604,738  $ 108,499,378
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Years ended June 30,
 2016 $44,694
 2017 $42,589
 2018 $34,176

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the Plan was determined by 
applying update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013, and 
rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2014. The financial reporting actuarial valuation 
as of June 30, 2013, used the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior 
periods included in the measurement: 

Valuation Date  June 30, 2013
Experience Study July 1, 1996, through June 30, 2011
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal
Investment Rate of Return 7.50%
Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%
Wage Growth Varies by entry age and service
Post-retirement Benefit Increases Contract COLA up to 2.75% 
   until Purchasing Power
   Protection Allowance Floor 
   on Purchasing Power applies
   2.75% thereafter

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 20 
years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, 
please refer to the 2014 experience study report.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, 
mortality and retirement rates. Further details of the Experience Study can be found at CalPERS’ 
website.

NOTE 6 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S 
RETIREMENT FUND (continued)
$99,437 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in 
the year ended June 30, 2015. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation.

   Long-Term*
   Assumed Asset Expected Real
 Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
 Global Equity 47% 5.25%
 Global Fixed Income 19 0.99
 Inflation Sensitive 6 0.45
 Private Equity  12 6.83
 Real Estate  11 4.50
 Infrastructure & Forestland  3 4.50
 Liquidity  2 (0.55)

 * 10-year geometric average

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. A 
projection of the expected benefit payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets 
would run out. The test revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore the long-term expected rate 
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability for the Plan. The results of the crossover testing for the Plan are 
presented in a detailed report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website.

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined 
without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return 
assumption used in the actuarial valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses 
are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would 
have been 7.65 percent. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher total pension 
liability and net pension liability. This difference was deemed immaterial to the Plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term 
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected cash flows of the Plan. Such cash 
flows were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required 
contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the Plan’s 
asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 
years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal 
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated. The 
expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at 
the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and 
long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate 
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
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NOTE 6 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S 
RETIREMENT FUND (continued)
Sensitivity of the JPA’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate: The following presents the JPA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the JPA’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50 
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate:

   1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
   (6.50%) Rate (7.50%) (8.50%)
JPA’s proportionate share 
 of the net pension liability $877,949 $542,029 $263,247

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report.

NOTE 7 – DESIGNATED NET POSITION
The Board of Directors established the designation for contingency at the actuary’s 
recommendation, to provide extra protection to the fund, and to further reduce the level of risk to 
members. There is no such designation for the years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014.

NOTE 8 – CONTINGENCIES
SELF is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business. In the 
opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not 
materially affect the financial position or results of operations of SELF.

Excess Liabilty Program Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities by Type of Contract 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

     2015  2014
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at
 beginning of year $ 15,690,378 $ 15,527,838
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:
 Provision for covered events of current year  2,798,997  2,740,355
 Change in provision for covered events of prior years  9,205,727        (1,457,799)
   Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses  12,004,724  1,282,556
Payments:
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses
  attributable to covered events of current year  -  -
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses
  attributable to covered events of prior years  4,152,029  1,120,016
   Total payments  4,152,029  1,120,016
   Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment  
   expenses, end of year $ 23,543,073 $ 15,690,378

The components of the unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 
were as follows:

     2015  2014
Reported claims $ 15,979,992 $ 7,910,171
Claims incurred but not reported  6,773,757  6,840,297
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses  789,324  939,910
    $ 23,543,073 $ 15,690,378

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Excess Workers’ Compenstation Program Reconciliation Of Claims Liabilities  
By Type Of Contract 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

     2015  2014
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at
 beginning of year $ 102,709,000 $ 113,980,000
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:
 Provision for covered events of current year  -  -
 Change in provision for covered events of
  prior years   1,554,747   (5,715,627 )
    Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses  1,554,747   (5,715,627 )
Payments:
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses
  attributable to covered events of current year  -  -
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses
  attributable to covered events of prior years  6,310,724  5,555,373
    Total payments  6,310,724   5,555,373
    Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment  
    expenses, end of year $ 97,953,023  $ 102,709,000

The components of the unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 
were as follows:

     2015  2014
Reported claims $ 58,342,050 $ 71,102,541
Claims incurred but not reported  31,442,190  26,290,544
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses  8,168,783  5,315,915
    $ 97,953,023 $ 102,709,000

Claims Development Information 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

The tables that follow illustrate how the Fund’s earned revenues (net of reinsurance) and investment 
income compare to related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by reinsurers) and other expenses 
assumed by the Fund as of the end of each of the previous ten years for the Liability and Workers’ 
Compensation programs. The rows of the tables are defined as follows:

1. Total of each fiscal year’s gross earned premiums, rate credits, amounts of premiums ceded, and 
reported premiums (net of reinsurance) and reported investment revenue allocated to each policy 
year.

2. Each fiscal year’s other operating costs of the Program including overhead and loss adjustment 
expenses not allocable to individual claims. 

3. Program’s gross incurred losses and allocated loss adjustment expense, losses assumed by 
reinsurers, and net incurred losses and loss adjustment expense (both paid and accrued) as originally 
reported at the end of the year in which the event that triggered coverage occurred (called policy 
year).

4. Cumulative net amounts paid as of the end of successive years for each policy year.

5. Latest reestimated amount of losses assumed by reinsurers for each policy year.

6. Policy year’s net incurred claims as of the end of successive years. This annual reestimation results 
from new information received on known claims, reevaluation of existing information on known 
claims, as well as emergence of new claims not previously known.

7. Compares the latest reestimated net incurred claims amount to the amount originally established 
(line 5) and shows whether this latest estimate of claims cost is greater or less than originally thought.  
As data for individual policy years mature, the correlation between original estimates and 
reestimated amounts is commonly used to evaluate the accuracy of incurred claims currently 
recognized in less mature policy years.

8. Outstanding unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses as of June 30, 2015 for each policy 
year.

The columns of the tables show data for successive policy years.
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Fiscal and Policy Year Ended June 30,
       2006   2007   2008   2009   2010   2011   2012   2013   2014   2015
(1) Premiums revenue:
   Earned  $ 23,820  $ 17,198  $ 10,600  $ 9,998  $ 14,268  $ 11,376  $ 10,817  $ 9,829  $ 9,874  $ 10,294
   Ceded (by policy year)  (2,465 )  (2,999 )  (3,017 )  (7,955 )  (10,345 )  (7,997 )  (8,296 )  (6,610 )  6,602   7,061  
   Cumulative interest earned 
    (by policy year)  6,718   3,330   1,878   155   293   90   57   57   31   566
   Net earned contribution
     and investment income $ 28,073  $ 17,529  $ 9,461  $ 2,198  $ 4,216  $ 3,469  $ 2,578  $ 3,276  $ 16,507  $ 17,921
(2) Unallocated expenses $ 1,460  $ 1,508  $ 1,320  $ 1,396  $ 1,777  $ 1,406  $ 1,369  $ 1,265  $ 1,473  $ 1,504
(3) Estimated incurred claims and 
   expenses, end of policy year:
    Incurred  $ 14,916  $ 7,648  $ 3,454  $ -  $ 4,755  $ 3,732  $ 3,652  $ 5,697  $ 2,740  $ 2,680
    Ceded  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -
    Net incurred $ 14,916  $ 7,648  $ 3,454  $ -  $ 4,755  $ 3,732  $ 3,652  $ 5,697  $ 2,740  $ 2,680
(4) Paid (cumulative) as of:
   End of policy year $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -
   One year later $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -
   Two years later $ 225  $ 4,000  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 4,005  $ -  $ 2,761
   Three years later $ 1,218  $ 4,130  $ 967  $ -  $ -  $ 4,011  $ -
   Four years later $ 3,967  $ 20,114  $ 2,319  $ -  $ -  $ 4,011
   Five years later $ 6,507  $ 20,930  $ 2,365  $ -  $ - 
   Six years later $ 6,597  $ 20,947  $ 2,365  $ - 
   Seven years later $ 6,599  $ 20,947  $ 2,365
   Eight years later $ 6,599  $ 21,335
   Nine years later $ 6,599 

(5) Re-estimated ceded losses 
  and expenses $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -
(6) Re-estimated incurred claims 
  and expenses:
   End of policy year $ 14,916  $ 7,648  $ 3,454  $ -  $ 4,755  $ 3,732  $ 3,652  $ 5,697  $ 2,740  $ 2,680
   One year later $ 9,813  $ 12,496  $ 7,727  $ -  $ 3,048  $ 3,043  $ 2,210  $ 4,826  $ 3,645
   Two years later $ 7,484  $ 7,566  $ 2,604  $ -  $ 1,746  $ 5,142  $ 1,244  $ 3,706
   Three years later $ 2,670  $ 6,778  $ 7,524  $ -  $ 721  $ 4,778  $ 5,344  
   Four years later $ 5,731  $ 23,080  $ 4,354  $ -  $ 522  $ 9,362    
   Five years later $ 7,301  $ 22,128  $ 2,528  $ -  $ 239      
   Six years later $ 6,713  $ 21,074  $ 2,501  $ -        
   Seven years later $ 6,599  $ 20,983  $ 2,477          
   Eight years later $ 6,599  $ 21,400            
   Nine years later $ 6,626                 

(7) (Decrease) increase in esti-
  mated incurred claims and 
  expenses from end  
  of policy year $ (8,290 ) $ 13,752  $ (1,068 ) $ -  $ (4,516)  $ 5,630  $ 1,692  $ (1,991 ) $ 905  $ -
(8) Unpaid claims and claim
  adjustment expenses $ 27  $ 65  $ 112  $ -  $ 239  $ 5,351  $ 5,344  $ 945  $ 3,645  $ 2,680

Note: Beginning July 1, 1999, SELF began discounting claim liabilities.
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Fiscal and Policy Year Ended June 30,
      2006   2007   2008   2009   2010   2011   2012   2013   2014   2015
(1)  Premium revenue:
   Earned $ 9,957  $ 11,237  $ 5,622  $ 4,155  $ 3,561  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
   Ceded  (5,848 )  (7,643 )  (2,141 )  (1,955 )  (1,685 )  -   -   -   -   -
   Cumulative interest earned
    (by policy year)  1,433   923   748   300   103   -   -   -   -   -
   Net earned $ 5,542  $ 4,517  $ 4,229  $ 2,500  $ 1,979  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 

(2) Unallocated expenses $ 751  $ 1,084  $ 1,009  $ 824  $ 1,095  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
(3) Estimated incurred claims and
  expense, end of policy year:
   Incurred $ 5,057  $ 2,974  $ 907  $ 2,067  $ 2,145  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
   Ceded  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -
   Net incurred $ 5,057  $ 2,974  $ 907  $ 2,067  $ 2,145  $ -  $ -  $ -  $   $ -
(4) Paid (cumulative) as of:
   End of policy year $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -
   One year later $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -
   Two years later $ -  $ 82  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -
   Three years later $ -  $ 102  $ -  $ 188  $ 81  $ -
   Four years later $ -  $ 112  $ -  $ 491  $ 96
   Five years later $ -  $ 650  $ 61  $ 552  $ 201
   Six years later $ -  $ 787  $ 110  $ 816
   Seven years later $ -  $ 898  $ 363
   Eight years later $ -  $ 935  
   Nine years later $ -

(5) Re-estimated ceded losses
  and expenses $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -
(6) Re-estimated incurred claims
  and expense:
   End of policy year $ 5,057  $ 2,974  $ 907  $ 2,067  $ 2,145  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
   One year later $ 2,750  $ 3,018  $ 1,608  $ 2,667  $ 2,145  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
   Two years later $ 2,590  $ 3,727  $ 2,668  $ 3,287  $ 2,139  $ -  $ -  $ -   
   Three years later $ 2,856  $ 3,523  $ 3,740  $ 3,373  $ 2,252  $ -  $ -     
   Four years later $ 2,273  $ 3,900  $ 3,162  $ 3,814  $ 2,323  $ -       
   Five years later $ 2,226  $ 3,736  $ 2,957  $ 4,446  $ 1,703        
   Six years later $ 1,568  $ 3,464  $ 2,736  $ 3,556          
   Seven years later $ 1,524  $ 3,653  $ 2,389            
   Eight years later $ 1,279  $ 3,019             
   Nine years later $ 964

(7) Increase (decrease) in esti-
  mated incurred claims  
  and expense from end of 
  policy year $ (4,093 ) $ 45  $ 1,482  $ 1,489  $ (442 ) $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -
(8) Unpaid claims and claim
  adjustment expense with ULAE $ 964  $ 2,084  $ 2,026  $ 4,766  $ 1,502  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -

Note: Beginning July 1, 1999, SELF began discounting claim liabilities.
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Schedule Of JPA’s Proportionate Share Of The Net Pension Liability 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
 

Public Employer’s Retirement Fund

Last 10 Fiscal Years
       2015
SELF’s proportion of the net pension liability    0.02193%

SELF’s proportionate share of the net pension liability   $ 542,029

SELF’s covered-employee payroll   $ 561,000

SELF’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage  
 of its covered-employee payroll    96.62%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability   78.59%

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

Schedule Of JPA Contributions 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Public Employer’s Retirement Fund
Last 10 Fiscal Years
       2015
Contractually required contribution   $ 80,717

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution    (80,717 )

Contribution deficiency (excess)   $  -

SELF’s covered-employee payroll   $ 561,000

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll    14.39%

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

Notes To Required Supplementary Information
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Changes of Benefit Terms: There are no changes in benefit terms reported in the Required   

 Supplementary Information.

Changes of Assumptions: There are no changes in assumptions reported in the Required   
 Supplementary Information.

Supplementary Information is available in the complete Financial Audit Report for years ending  
June 30, 2015 and 2014, which can be found on the SELF website at http://www.selfjpa.org/about/
financials/SELF-2015-fss.pdf

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors and Members 
Schools Excess Liability Fund 
Sacramento, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Schools 
Excess Liability Fund which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 
2015, and the related statement of revenues, expenses and change in net 
position, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 1, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
Schools Excess Liability Fund’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Schools Excess Liability Fund’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Schools Excess Liability Fund’s 
internal controls.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a 
timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
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or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Schools Excess Liability 
Fund’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing 
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control 
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose.

Crowe Horwath LLP
Sacramento, California 
October 1, 2015
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Our experienced and professional 
business partners can provide you with 
the same great service that SELF 
enjoys every day. 

Independent Auditors
Crowe Horwath LLP

Cash & Investment Management
Public Financial Management, Inc.

Actuary
Bickmore Risk Services 
Excess Liability & Excess Workers’ 
Compensation

Counsel
Kronick, Moskovitz, Tiedemann & Girard 
General Legal Counsel

Insurance Consultants
Guy Carpenter & Company, LLC

Legislative Advocate
School Services of California, Inc.

Risk Management Consultants
in2vate, LLC

Claims Auditor
Aon Corporation,  
Excess Liability Program &  
Excess Workers’ Compensation 
Program

Reinsurers/Excess Insurers
CSAC-EIA

Munich Re America, Inc.

Great American Insurance Company

Allied World Assurance Company 
(U.S.), Inc.

Ironshore

Argonaut

Markel

Lexington Insurance Company

Annual Report
McCarthy Designs

SELF is always attentive and responsive 
to your risk management needs. Let us 
know how we can help you.
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Golden State Risk Management Authority

Northern California Schools Insurance Group

Shasta-Trinity Schools Insurance Group

Schools Insurance Group

Tri-County Schools Insurance Group

Santa Clara County Schools Insurance Group

Valley Insurance Program

San Mateo County Schools  
 Insurance Group
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 Insurance Programs

San Diego County Schools Risk  
 Management JPA

California Schools Risk Management JPA

Southern Orange County Property/Liability  
 JPA

West San Gabriel Liability & Property JPA 
Risk Management Associations

Public Agency Risk Management Association (PARMA)

California Association of Joint Powers Authorities (CAJPA)

Public Risk Management Association (PRIMA)

Risk & Insurance Management Society (RIMS)

Professional Organizations

Association of California School Administrators (ACSA)

California Association of School Business Officials (CASBO)

Association of California Community College Administrators 

California School Board Association (CSBA)



Schools Excess Liability Fund

1531 I Street, Suite 300 
Sacramento, CA 95814

Toll-free telephone (866) 453-5300 
Facsimile (916) 321-5311

E-mail info@selfjpa.org 
Website www.selfjpa.org

From the days when a doctor’s best diagnostic tool 

was “Stick out your tongue and say ‘ahhh’” to being 

able to swab the inside of your cheek for a DNA 

sample, medical science has come a long way. We 

can now obtain the DNA of a tumor and, armed with 

that knowledge, use the best treatment for that 

specific cancer. This kind of knowledge is indeed 

powerful. Health care providers are just beginning to 

wrestle with how to use this new medical tool. If, for 

instance, doctors find that a patient has a genetic 

marker for multiple sclerosis does she benefit from 

treatment that could slow the development of MS, or 

could she be harmed by treating a disease she may 

never get?


